
TIB-RFP-04-04 
AMENDMENT #1:  QUESTIONS & ANSWERS, June 14, 2004 

 
 
1.  Will the Board consider an asset-based fee rather than 
a fixed dollar fee for each of the periods under 
consideration.  
   
 Answer: No 
 
2.  What is the processing timeline for contributions and 
withdrawals from the G Fund. 
  
 Answer: The processing timeline should be considered 
the same for all funds.  Contributions are received and 
processed overnight, deposited into the fund's Government 
Securities Investment Fund (GSIF) account and included in 
that business day's trade, and the trade settles on t+1.  
Withdrawal requests are received up to the 12:00 noon (ET) 
cut-off, estimated and included in that day's trade, and 
the trade settles on t+1. 
 
3.  Will all questions posed to you and your responses be 
made available to all potential contractors? 
  
 Answer:  Yes. They will be posted on our website at 
www.frtib.gov and emails will sent to companies that have 
provided emails. 
 
4.  Can we please get copies of the analyses of the Thrift 
Savings Plan participant demographics from the previous 
five years, as referenced on page 38 of the RFP? 
  
 Answer:  We believe the provided demographic report is 
sufficient. 
  
5.  Can you please provide some additional information 
about how closely we would be able to work with the Lot 1 
team?  Our concern is our ability to meet the pre-defined 
end-date without knowing when we will receive critical 
information from the Lot 1 team (e.g., number of lifecycle 
funds, rebalancing method, the target asset allocation 
models, etc.).   
 
  Answer:  The Agency anticipates working closely with 
all vendors. 
  



6.  The timing between Lot 1 and Lot 2 deliverables will 
also impact our project plan, milestones, and recommended 
implementation schedule.  Will we be allowed to create an 
integrated timeline that shows the required coordination 
between Lot 1 and Lot 2 milestones? 
 
 Answer:  An integrated timeline is acceptable. 
 
 
7.  Can you please confirm whether the term “day,” as used 
in conjunction with the Lot 2 timeline refers to calendar 
days or business days? (e.g., the deadline for step 3, 
delivery of the initial Written Communications Strategy, 
would fall on Sunday, November 14, 2004, using calendar 
days). 
 
  Answer:  “Day” is defined as a calendar day.  If a 
deadline falls on a weekend or holiday, the deadline is the 
following business day. 
  
 
8.  Can you please provide some additional information 
about how closely we would be able to work with the print 
vendor?  Our creative process includes integrated quality 
control standards and services, from the strategy phase 
through the printing and Web publishing phase.  We would 
welcome the opportunity to work closely with the print 
vendor during the pre-press and press-check stages to 
ensure the overall quality control of the final 
communications materials. 
 
  Answer:  The Agency retains responsibility for the 
printing of the materials.  However, the Agency staff will 
work very closely with all the vendors to coordinate their 
efforts. 
 
9.  Can you please provide a brief description of how 
closely  integrated the design and programming of Web based 
materials can be?  Our creative methodology includes 
rigorous evaluation and review throughout all phases of a 
project, including printing and Web publishing. 
 
 Answer:  The Agency is looking for the vendor to 
propose an appropriate Web design for the introduction of 
lifecycle funds within the construct of the Agency’ s web 
site.  However, the Agency retains responsibility for the 



integration of the new and revised Web screen layouts with 
the existing TSP web site.   
  
10. Will we have an opportunity to adjust our price 
proposal (upwards or downwards) after the strategy has been 
completed and the product has been further defined?  Some 
examples of why this is important are provided below: 
 
 ÿ If the Lot 1 project results in five lifecycle 
funds instead of three funds, this will significantly 
impact the amount of communications required to 
appropriately educate your target audience about your 
lifecycle fund campaign. 
   
 ÿ If the strategy suggests that customized content 
and graphics should be created for each lifecycle fund, 
that will impact the number and content of the 
communications we recommend, as well as the cost. 
 
 ÿ If our analysis of your existing communications 
results in a recommendation that you develop more new 
materials than we typically end up recommending for 
clients, this can have a significant impact on our timeline 
and price.  
 
 Answer:  This is a firm fixed price contract.  One way 
to do this is to state your assumptions.  For instance, in 
the first example, contractors can state that for four 
funds the cost is $400 and list the cost for an additional 
lifecycle fund. If it turns out there is five and you 
stated its $100 for each additional fund, the cost would be 
$500.  For the second example, if there is a median cost to 
develop new materials, give the cost for each additional 
one.  
 
11. Would the Agency consider an asset based fee 
structure? 
 
 Answer:  No.  The work to be performed for both Lot 1 
and Lot 2 is on a fixed price basis. 
 
12. Would the Agency allow the selected vendor to create 
and manage the custom lifecycle funds? 
 
 Answer:  No. 
 



13. Would the Agency consider using proprietary lifecycle 
funds? 
 
 Answer:  No. 
 
14. B.1 Scope of Project. Lot #1, page 4. The fees around 
Lot 1 are provided over multiple years. Is it expected that 
these fees be stated on a dollar basis or could they also 
be provided in basis points? 
  Answer:  Fees must be stated on a dollar basis.  They 
are not to be based on a percentage of the assets of the 
fund. 
15. Attachment 1, Lot 1, Question 6, page 27.  Our 
agreements with clients provide for confidentiality. We 
will therefore need to contact each client individually to 
ask for permission. Given confidentiality restrictions, is 
a partial client list acceptable?  
Answer:  Perhaps you should contact the clients for 
permission.  Most companies realize you need references.  
Many companies just want to know the type of information 
being provided and to whom the information is being 
provided. 
 
16. Attachment 1, Lot 1, Question 8g, page 28: Our 
agreements with clients provide for confidentiality.  
Therefore, we would like to provide an "XYZ" sample 
document for review. Is this acceptable? 
  Answer:  We prefer actual documents with the client’s 
name redacted. 
17. C.2, Lot 2, a. – Page 8: The Statement of Work states 
that the vendor will conduct Agency staff interviews. Would 
it also be possible to solicit feedback from participants, 
whether through focus groups, interviews, surveys, or a 
combination of these methods?   
 Answer:  Yes.  Subject to coordination with Agency staff. 
18. C.2, Lot 2, b. – Page 8: Are there certain 
communication guiding principles that are currently in 
place that we should be aware of? For example, is glossy, 
four-color material typically not produced because their 
perceived -- real or not -- value is high while cost 
cutting is occurring in other areas? 
  Answer:  The Agency does not have any specific 
printing prohibitions.  However,  because all 
administrative costs are borne by the TSP participants, the 
Agency seeks a balance between the cost and quality of the 
communication materials and vehicles.   



19. C.2, Lot 2, c. – Page 8: Are there any other 
initiatives, major announcements, or changes slated to 
occur at the same time that this campaign would be rolled 
out? 
  Answer:  None identified at this time.   However, 
there is pending legislation (H.R.4324 and S.2479) that 
would eliminate TSP open seasons.  We would expect to 
implement whatever provisions are enacted within one year.  
Please be aware that the elimination of open seasons does 
not affect the ability of the participant to make a 
contribution allocation or interfund transfer.  It only 
affects the ability to change the amount of the 
contribution and potentially when the employee contribution 
would start. 
20. F.3, b., 2) - Page 13: The FRTIB asks for design 
alternatives for the campaign. If the campaign covers the 
marketing of the entire plan with the lifecycle funds being 
the most prominent feature, do you agree that the design 
alternatives could be a rebranding of the graphics of all 
your TSP communication (versus a new look for just the 
communication around the new funds)? 
  Answer:  The Agency is only looking for communication 
materials for the introduction of lifecycle funds. 
21. Do you currently communicate with TSP participants who 
have separated from service, including those in retirement? 
 Answer:  Yes. 
22. Do you have any specific targets about the dollar 
amount transferring into the new funds or employee 
behaviors resulting from the introduction of the new funds? 
  Answer:  No.  The Agency has not set specific targets.  
However, we are requiring the vendor to propose measures 
for success.  
 
23. Will the Agency continue to allow participants to 
invest in the current fund lineup without opting for a 
lifecycle fund? 
  
 Answer:  Yes. 
 
24. Will communications need to be provided in any 
languages other than English? 
 
 Answer:  No. 
 
25. We note that the Agency will handle its own printing 
needs. Is your printer capable of producing personalized 
materials? 



 
 Answer:  Currently we do not do this.  However, we 
would not preclude this approach from being recommended.   
 
26. Will the Agency need production management assistance 
(i.e., a contractor representative to work with your 
printer to ensure print quality and accurate distribution)? 
 
 Answer:  No, the Agency retains responsibility for the 
printing of the materials.   
 
27. Will the Agency perform its own technical and legal 
review of communication materials? 
 
 Answer:  Yes. 
 
28. We note that the Agency requires six copies of 
responses to the technical portion of the RFP. Do you also 
require six sets of communication samples? 
 
 Answer:  Yes. 
 
29. Does the Agency wish to encourage employees not in 
lifecycle funds to be more active managers of their 
accounts? 
 
 Answer:  This is not a goal of the lifecycle campaign.  
However, we expect the information provided by this 
campaign will benefit all TSP participants.   
 
30. Does the Agency wish to increase participation from 
the current 88%? 
 
 Answer:  This is not a goal of this project. 
 
31. Does the Agency wish to increase the level of employee 
deferrals? 
 
 Answer:  This is not a goal of this project. 
 
31. How many versions of communications are required? We 
count three (TSP for legislative and judicial branch; TSP 
for executive branch; and CSRS). 
 
 Answer:  The communication materials should cover all 
populations within the TSP.  See the TSP Plan Summary 



available on the TSP web site (www.tsp.gov) for 
descriptions of these populations.  
 
32. Does the Agency have experience that would indicate 
the learning preferences of TSP participants and non-
participants (e.g., Web, face-to-face, print)? 
 
 Answer:  No data is available.  However, given the 
worldwide TSP population of nearly 3.3 million, we do not 
rely on face-to-face meetings. 
 
33. Has the Agency done any participant research to 
determine why some eligible employees do not participate 
and/or how participants make their investment decisions? If 
so, will the Agency share the results of that research? 
 
 Answer:  No data is available. 
 
34. How many Agency staff members would be involved in the 
lifecycle fund structure recommendation process? For each 
staff member please provide his or her responsibilities 
within the Agency. 
  
 Answer:  The Investments section of the Office of 
Benefits and Investments will be directly involved in  
establishing investment policy for lifecycle funds.  Staff 
consists of the Office Director, James B. Petrick, and 
financial analysts William Jacobson and Sylvia Bargas.  
NOTE: Potential contractors can not contact these 
individuals prior to award. 
 
35. F.3. e. -- Annual Reevaluation indicates that the 
contractor should provide a written report revising or 
confirming the target asset allocations. Should the 
contractor assume that presentation of the written report 
to the Agency or Members of the Board would be expected or 
desired? 
 
 Answer:  The contractor should expect to present the 
results of its annual review of the target asset 
allocations to Agency staff and/or the Board. 
 
36. You state in your RFP that you anticipate introducing 
the lifecycle funds mid-2005.  Can we assume this means 
July 1, 2005? 
  



 Answer:  As stated in the Statement of Work Section 
C.1.e., all Lot 2 work must be completed by May 1, 2005.  
We will not commit to a specific implementation date at 
this time. 
  
37. Do you have a sense of the size and makeup of the 
group with whom the contractor will be working? 
  
 Answer:  The Agency’s “working group” for the 
communications associated with the implementation of life 
cycle funds will be small (approximately 5 people) with 
representatives from the Agency’s communications, benefits, 
and investment staff.  
  
38. How many Agency staff do you envision being 
interviewed as part of the discovery process, or is this 
something you wish to have the contractor recommend? 
  
 Answer:  There will be an initial meeting with the 
Agency’s “working group”  at which time the individuals to 
be interviewed will be identified.  
  
39. We would envision providing the Agency with 2-3 weeks 
to review deliverables.  Will this be a sufficient amount 
of review time? 
 
 Answer:  Yes, planning for Agency reviews to be 
completed within 2 to 3 weeks is sufficient. 
 
40. Will the Agency plan on consolidating review comments, 
resolving any discrepancies or differing points of view, 
and presenting the contractor with one set of review 
comments?  Or should the contractor plan on receiving 
comments from various individuals and working to 
consolidate them? 
  
 Answer:  The Agency will provide the contractor with 
consolidated review comments. 
   
41. In F.3.e., it appears that the Agency is anticipating 
one draft and one redraft of communication materials.  Our 
experience suggests that this may not be sufficient to 
reach consensus on final wording, especially if a number of 
reviewers are involved.  May we plan for a process that 
involves an initial draft, a redraft, and a final draft? 
 



 Answer:  Yes.  We would expect the vendor to work 
informally with the Agency working group to refine the 
products. 
  
42. What time frame do you normally use between 
distributing information/enrollment materials to 
participants and the effective [date]of the change? 
 
 Answer:  We generally allow a minimum of two months 
between distribution of information/enrollment materials to 
participants and the effective date of the change.   This 
is why we are requiring the work to be completed by May 1, 
2005.    
 
43. Now that the Senate Governmental Affairs Committee has 
approved the bill to eliminate Open Season enrollment and 
allow for ongoing enrollment/changes throughout the year, 
how soon do you anticipate this change will take effect? 
 
 Answer:  Although the Senate bill (S2479) does not 
establish a specific effective date, companion legislation 
in the House of Representatives (H.R. 4324) would be 
effective within one year of enactment.  We would expect to 
implement whichever provisions are enacted within 1 year.   
Please be aware that the elimination of open seasons does 
not affect the ability of the participant to make a 
contribution allocation or interfund transfer.  It only 
affects the ability to change the amount of the 
contribution and potentially when the employee 
contributions would start. 
 
44. What percentage of the TSP population is located 
outside the US?  
 
 Answer:  We do not track this data and the population 
is not static. However, it is a small percentage of the TSP 
population and the majority are members of the uniformed 
services.  Note that the Agency retains responsibility for 
the dissemination of information.  
 
45. Where is this population located geographically (by 
worldwide region, or country), and approximately what 
percentage is in each region or county? 
 
 Answer:  We do not track this data. 
  



46. What percentage of your US-based workforce does not 
use English as their primary language?  
  
  Answer:  All of the Agency’s communication materials 
are disseminated in English only. 
 
47. Do they have need for non-English communication 
material? If so, what languages, and which communication 
mediums (voice, internet, printed, video, etc.) would need 
that alternative language material?  
 
 Answer:  All of the Agency’s communication materials 
are disseminated in English only. 
 
48. Do any geographic regions have limited availability to 
communication or enrollment mediums (such as phone or 
internet access)? If so, which regions/countries and what 
are the limitations or special communication needs by 
region/country?  
 
 Answer:  We are aware that some members overseas have 
more limited access.  However, the majority can get to the 
internet and their agencies or services have the primary 
responsibility for the dissemination of information. 
 
49. Are all non-US based personnel US citizens or similar? 
Are non-US host country employees allowed in the TSP? If 
so, what percentage and which countries? 
 
 Answer:  The answer to the first question is “yes” and 
the answer to the second question is “no.” 
  
50. Do non-US countries taxation systems apply to benefits 
accrued in or paid from the TSP? 
  
  Answer:  You should assume that all TSP payments are 
subject to U.S. federal income tax (with the exception of 
tax-exempt contributions for members of the uniformed 
services.  (See answer [55] below.)  
 
51. If so, do they apply to US based, or non-US based 
participants? 
 
 Answer:  Not applicable. 
  
52. If so, do these tax systems need to be taken into 
account in development of investment funds?  



 Answer:  No. 
  
53. If so, do these tax systems need to be taken into 
account in development of special communication and 
enrollment material?  
 
 Answer:  No. 
  
54. If investment funds or special communication material 
needs to be developed to reflect non-US taxation systems, 
to what percentage of your population would it apply, and 
for how many and which countries? 
  
 Answer:  Not applicable. 
 
55. Are any TSP participants exempt from US taxes? If so, 
are they different personnel than the participants for whom 
tax systems from other countries apply?  
 
  Answer:  Yes.  Members of the uniformed services may 
contribute from  pay that is subject to the combat zone tax 
exclusion. These contributions to the TSP are tax exempt 
when distributed.   
 
56. First, your RFP does not mention any face-to-face 
employee meetings to introduce the new funds.  Is this 
something you plan to do?  If so, would you need materials 
and/or presentation materials from the vendor select? 
 
 Answer:  No.  Given a worldwide population of nearly 
3.3 million participants, we do not rely on face-to-face 
meetings with participants. 
  
57. Second, your RFP makes mention of a final project 
cost.  Since we will not have had a planning meeting with 
your team, we are assuming it is okay to use some 
assumptions in developing an estimated plan and its 
associated fees.  If we were to win the work, we would meet 
with you to refine the scope of the project.  At that time, 
we would provide you with revised project fees.  Is this 
acceptable to you? Please advise. 
 
 Answer:  This is a firm fixed price contract.  You can 
state for example, “This cost is assuming there are four 
copies required.  There will be an additional charge of 
$100 per copy for each additional copy required over four.”  
That way we have a fixed cost, but you are protected should 



the Agency require more than what you assumed when you 
formulated your bid. 
 
58. Section B.3 Travel and Section L.b.2, page 4, requires 
that offerors provide estimated travel expenses separately 
from the firm fixed prices to be included in Section B.1.  
Please indicate the desired format for the submission of 
these expenses. 
 
Answer:  State your assumptions.  If you envision making 3 
trips to WDC and bringing 2 people, state that is what you 
would do.  Show the price per person, per trip along with 
rental car cost if applicable.  The government will 
reimburse contractor’s actual expenses in accordance with 
GSA travel regulations.  Receipts for airlines, hotel and 
rental car are required for reimbursement. 
 
59. Section F.3.d. Final report, page 11, states that 
“[w]ithin 30 days following the Agency’s acceptance of the 
deliverable in Section F.3.b, the contractor must submit a 
final written report of its recommendations to the Agency.”  
Should the reference in this statement read “F.3.c” as 
opposed to “F.3.b? 
 
 Answer:  No. This citation is correct. 
 
60. Section F.3.e. Individual Communications Materials and 
Vehicles, page 13, requires that “[c]ontractors must draft 
individual communications materials and vehicles and 
revised language for existing materials to be submitted for 
review by Agency staff.”   
 
  a. What is the due date for these documents as it is 
noted that all other documents in the solicitation specify 
a due date?   
 
 Answer:  Once the Agency has selected the strategy and 
design approach, the contractor shall provide to the COTR 
the Final Strategy, the Final Design Approach, and the 
Final Project Plan and Timeline.  The due dates for the 
draft individual communication materials and vehicles and 
revised language for existing materials will be established 
based on the vendor’s project plan.  The due dates of the 
materials can be staggered. 
 
 b.  How long is the review period by Agency staff? 
 



 Answer:  We anticipate a two to three week response. 
 
 c.  Will the Agency provide one set of consolidated 
comments on all communication materials and vehicles? 
    
 Answer:  Yes. 
 
61. Section I Contract Clauses, FAR 52.204-4 Printed or 
Copied Double-Sided on Recycled Paper (AUG 2000), page 20: 
 
  a.  Since Section L does not specifically state 
double-sided print for the submission of proposals, is it 
the Agency’s intent, in accordance with the above-
referenced clause, that offerors’ proposals in response to 
the solicitation be submitted in double-sided format? 
 
  Answer: Double sided copy is preferred. 
   
  b. If the answer to the above question is “yes” does a 
single two sided sheet count as one or two pages when 
adhering to the page limitation requirements of Section L? 
 
 Answer:  Each side counts as a page. 
 
62. Section I Contract Clauses, FAR 52.215-2 Audit and 
Record-Negotiation (JUN 1999), page 20:  FAR 15.209 
prescribes that FAR 52.215-2 be inserted in solicitations 
and contracts except those for “(iii) The acquisition of 
commercial items exempted under 15.403-1.”  FAR 15.403-1 
states that “[t]he contracting officer shall not require 
submission of cost or pricing data to support any 
actionÿ(1) When the contracting officer determines that 
prices agreed upon are based on adequate price competition” 
or “(3) When a commercial item is being acquiredÿ”  Because 
the services sought by the Solicitation are being competed 
and because the services sought meet the definition of 
commercial items, will the Agency please delete this FAR 
clause? 
 
 Answer:  While it is likely that I will receive 
adequate competition, I am not sure of the competition I 
will receive and might require this avenue to prove price 
reasonableness. Therefore I will leave the clause in the 
solicitation, however if I receive adequate competition I 
will not exercise it. 
 



63. Section I Contract Clauses, FAR 52.222-41 Service 
Contract Act of 1965, as Amended (MAY 1989), page 21:  Will 
the Agency please provide copies of the applicable wage 
determinations(s)? 
 
 Answer:  Since wage determinations are dependent upon 
the geographical locations of the business and award has 
not been made, I do not know which wage rate will be used 
for this contract.  I advise everyone to contact the 
Department of Labor in their area and obtain one to use in 
completing the bid.  The wage rates will be added at time 
of award. 
  
64. Attachment #1, Lot 1, Requirement 6 and Lot 2, 
Requirement 4 Page, 27 and 28, respectively:  Each of the 
referenced sections require that offerors provide lists of 
“all clients for which you have provided consulting 
services in establishing lifecycle funds during the past 
five years” (Lot 1) or of “all clients for whom you have 
developed communication programs for the introduction of 
lifecycle funds within the past five years” (Lot 2).  
Additionally, each of the Lot 1 and Lot 2 proposal 
requirements request that offerors provide specific 
information for at least two (but no more than four) 
projects in which the offeror has “assisted in the 
establishment of lifecycle funds for a client” (Requirement 
8 for Lot 1) or “developed or assisted in the 
communications associated with the introduction of 
lifecycle funds for a client” (Requirement 8 for Lot 2).  
It appears that the two referenced requirements are 
redundant in light of the Requirement 8 for each lot.  Will 
the Agency please delete the above-referenced requirements, 
leaving Requirement 8, which provides more detailed 
information? 
 
 Answer:  The Agency will not delete either requirement 
because one is a request for all clients and the other is a 
request for more detail on a selected number of clients.  
 
65. Attachment #1, Lot 1, Requirement 8.g and Lot 2, 
Requirement 8.e, pages 28 and 30, respectively:  The above-
referenced Lot 1 requirement asks that offerors include 
with their proposals “copies of all work products produced 
on the [cited] project” while the Lot 2 requirement asks 
that offerors include “copies of relevant work products”.  
It is our practice not to distribute or leave behind copies 
of work performed for our clients to other clients or 



potential clients.  We regard this work as proprietary and 
belonging to the client for whom the work was performed.  
However, with permission from the client, we can show 
copies of their relevant work products to other clients and 
potential clients.  
 
 In light of this, will the Agency consider revising 
this requirement such that offerors qualifying for the 
competitive range bring copies of sample work products to 
the interviews noted in Section L.6 for the Agency’ s 
review, with the understanding that copies will not be left 
behind and that this requirement will be subject to the 
client’s prior approval? 
 
  Answer:  As stated in the RFP, the review of vendor’s 
prior work products is required to determine if the 
vendor’s proposal is in the competitive range.  Only those 
vendors in the competitive range will be interviewed.  The 
Agency understands proprietary information and will accept 
work products with the client’s  name redacted so long as 
the vendor clearly identifies that the work products came 
from the same project. 
 
66. Attachment #1, Lot 2, Requirement 13, page 31:  The 
Solicitation requires that offerors “ [d]escribe how you 
plan to communicate with Agency staff in accomplishing this 
project.”  Will the Agency please provide additional 
information regarding its organizational structure? 
  
  Answer:  The COTR will be the vendor’s primary 
contact.  At the initial meeting with the Agency after the 
contract is awarded, the COTR will introduce the Agency’s 
working group that will consist of communications, 
benefits, and investments staff. 
 
67. Section L.1.a.2, Submission of Proposal, Technical 
Proposal, page 116:  The Solicitation includes an 
Attachment 1 that requires that certain questions be 
addressed in offerors’ proposals.  In addition, Section 
L.1.a.2 provides proposal preparation instructions, some of 
which address some of the same requirements that are 
addressed in Attachment 1.  Can the Agency please clarify 
specifically to which sections the 20 page limitation 
applies? 
 



  Answer: Per Section L of the solicitation, the 
technical proposal is limited to 20 pages excluding resumes 
and work product. 
 
68. Section M.3 Cost/Price, page 126: The solicitation 
indicates that the “cost/price evaluation carries a 20% 
weight” towards contract award. 
 
  a. What are the criteria for the 20%? 
 
  Answer:  Low cost. 
 
  b.  Can offerors score increments of the 20% or will 
offerors score either all or none of the percentage points? 
 
 Answer:  The Contracting Officer will use a formula to 
figure the number of points with the lowest priced, 
technically acceptable proposal in the competitive range 
receiving 20%. 
 
69. If we have experience in lifestyle funds and not 

lifecycle funds will we be excluded from 
consideration? 
 
Answer:  The minimum criteria require lifecycle fund 

experience, not just life style experience.  Therefore, if 
your firm does not have experience with lifecycle funds (as 
we define the term), you would be excluded from 
consideration. 
 


